

Rewarding Learning

ADVANCED SUBSIDIARY (AS)
General Certificate of Education
2015

 C	Centr	e Nu	mber
Can	didat	e Nu	mber

Journalism in the Media and Communications Industry

AS Unit 1
Journalism in Print



[A1J11] WEDNESDAY 27 MAY, MORNING

TIME

2 hours.

INSTRUCTIONS TO CANDIDATES

Write your Centre Number and Candidate Number in the spaces provided at the top of this page.

Answer **all** questions in Section A and **one** question from Section B. Write your answers in the spaces provided in this question paper. If needed, you can ask for more sheets to finish your answers. Please attach these sheets to your booklet using the treasury tag supplied.

INFORMATION FOR CANDIDATES

The total mark for this paper is 100.

Figures in brackets printed down the right-hand side of pages indicate the marks awarded to each question or part question. Quality of written communication will be assessed in Questions 1 and 2 and Questions 4, 5, and 6.

You are provided with an **Insert Booklet** for use with Question 1.

For Examiner's use only		
Question Number	Marks	
1		
2(a)		
2(b)		
3		
4		
5		
6		

Total	
Marks	

Examiner Only

Marks Remark

Section A

Answer all questions in this section.

1 The **Insert** contains **two** articles, Article 1 and Article 2, which relate to the same news story but are taken from different sources. Spend **40 minutes** completing the following task. Compare and contrast the following elements for each article: News Angle and Content Language and Style Target Audience and Ownership. The quality of written communication is assessed in this question. **Question 1 Answer:**

	Examin	er Only
	Marks	Remark
.		
.		
.		
.		

	E	Examine	er Only
	M	larks	Remark
[20]			
[20]			

You are a reporter for The Ballynamuch Gazette which is a Northern Ireland local weekly newspaper published every Tuesday. It serves the town of Ballynamuch (population 30,000) and the surrounding rural area in County Tyrone.

Examiner Only

Marks Remark

Complete the **two** writing tasks (a) and (b).

(a) Spend 25 minutes writing a news story of 250 words for The Ballynamuch Gazette, which will be published the next day. Your news story should be based on the following information. A headline will not be required.

It's Monday morning and you are starting your shift at 9.00am. You check the fire and police lines for any overnight events and discover the fire service were called out at 8.00am to a farm 5 miles outside Ballynamuch, near a village called Dalederry. The message says 5 fire appliances are in attendance at a "substantial fire".

You phone fire control and are put through to the fire service press officer, Janet Rae. She says crews have been dealing with a large fire at Grange Farm at Dalederry. The fire is now under control but at its height, 10 fire crews were in attendance. She says: "It took 60 firefighters an hour to bring this under control. Two of our fire officers have been taken to hospital suffering from smoke inhalation."

You call independent councillor Jimmy McCrery, who represents the area on Ballynamuch Council and lives in Dalederry. He says: "When I took the dog out at around half eight this morning the whole area smelt like a chip shop. But then as I came near Grange Farm I saw the smoke and flames. The road was crowded with a dozen fire engines." He says Grange Farm is the base for the animal feed firm Grange Feed, which employs around 30 people.

You phone the police press officer for the Tyrone area, Sean O'Doherty. He tells you that Grange Farm is on the A10, the main road between Ballynamuch and Omagh. He says there was severe disruption during the morning rush hour as police had to close the road because dense smoke was drifting across it. He says: "Local officers put a diversion in place but there were long tailbacks on the A10. We're still asking motorists to avoid the area if they can."

A call comes into the newsroom from John Bates who says he farms land near to Grange Farm. He's calling to complain about Grange Feed. He says: "I've been complaining about that place to the council for years. It's so badly run it's no wonder it hasn't gone up in smoke before." He also says that because the A10 was closed he couldn't get out of his farm this morning, and he had livestock due to be at market.

You phone Grange Feed and get a recorded message that gives you the number of a PR firm to contact – Joe Avery at Avid Communications.

You phone Joe and he tells you that Grange Feed turns food waste into animal feed. The fire started when 13 tonnes of crisps, which were not suitable for human consumption but were still hot, began smouldering. He

Examiner Only

Marks Remark

says: "Grange Feed has procedures in place to ensure hot waste does not come onto site. But this delivery came in late last night.

"The delivery driver believed the material was cool. But overnight a hot spot developed. The crisps began burning, and the fire spread. The firefighters had to dig the crisps out of the storage area and spread them on the ground before hosing them down."

He says Grange Feed estimates that £30,000 worth of damage has been caused to its premises. He says the firm employs 35 people and supplies animal feed to farms across the whole of Ireland. He gives you a statement from the company director William Grange. "Grange Feed would like to thank the fire service for dealing with this incident so quickly, preventing further damage, and want to extend our best wishes to the two officers who suffered injury. Grange Feed will be launching an investigation into this incident but we can assure our many customers that we hope to be back to business as usual later this week."

The quality of written communication is assessed in this question.

Question 2(a) Answer:		

	Examin	er Only
	Marks	Remark

	Exami	ner Only
	Marks	Remark
[25]		

2 You have received the press release below from politician Teresa Smith.

(b)	Spend 20 minutes writing a headline and the first three paragraphs
	of a news story based on this press release. The headline and the
	first three paragraphs must total 80 words. This story will be for the
	next edition of The Ballynamuch Gazette.

Examiner Only

Marks Remark

For immediate release

Teresa Smith, the independent councillor for Ballynamuch West, has pledged her support for traders in the Green Street arcade. The businesses in the popular shopping centre in Ballynamuch say their takings are down due to the extensive work on the road outside. The project to replace water mains in Green Street started three months ago. The work has meant the on-street parking in Green Street is no longer available.

Councillor Smith said: "The businesses in the Green Street arcade, many of them run by local families, say their busiest shopping period – the spring and early summer – has been disrupted by this work.

"They say that shoppers don't realise that the arcade is still open because of the machinery outside the entrance, and even if they do, they can't park nearby any more."

Councillor Smith raised the issue at a meeting of Ballynamuch Council's finance committee last night. She is calling for the council to allow the businesses in the arcade to pay a lower business rate while the work continues.

The committee agreed to investigate how much this would cost the council. An officer is to report back at the committee's next meeting in September.

Teresa Smith said: "If the council wants to attract shoppers to Ballynamuch, especially in these hard economic times, it needs to support the traders in the town."

Ends

Notes for Editors

Teresa Smith has served on Ballynamuch Council for 15 years.

Work to replace the water main in Green Street in Ballynamuch is due to be completed by December 2015.

The original water pipes date from Victorian times.

The upgrading work will improve water pressure for hundreds of homes in Ballynamuch West.

The quality of written communication is assessed in this question.

Question 2(b) Answer:		Examin	er Only
	j	Marks	Remark
	.		
	-		
	-		
	-		
	-		
	.		
	-		
	-		
	.		

		Examin	er Only
	N	Marks	Remark
[15]			
[]			

3 Below is a **400 word** feature that has been written for a **monthly lifestyle magazine** aimed at women aged 35-55. At the end of the article there are four photographs related to the article.

Examiner Only Marks Remark

Spend **10 minutes** completing this task.

You are a sub-editor at the magazine. You must read the feature article and then complete the following sub-editing tasks:

- Reduce the word count to the required 350 word total. You must make any changes on the feature copy itself by putting a line through words you wish to delete and marking any changes clearly;
- Compose an appropriate **headline** for the feature in the space provided on page 13 of this Answer Booklet;
- Select one photograph to accompany the article by indicating your choice in the space provided on page 13 of this Answer Booklet; and
- Write a caption for the photograph of no more than 10 words in the space provided on page 13 of this Answer Booklet.

Feature:

By now, your New Year's health resolutions are probably a distant memory, with diets long abandoned and gym memberships barely used. But improving your health doesn't need to involve unrealistic targets and overwhelming lists of rules. We've come up with four sensible, cheap and achievable steps that will help improve your health.

1] Stick to a sensible diet

We all know that diet is important and we need to eat well. Yet the constant bombardment of advice on what foods are 'good' and 'bad' seems to change constantly. Faddy diets come and go, but the best way to improve your diet is to stick to one rule: 'everything in moderation'. Dietician Tony Woods advises: "Studies show that 95% of people who follow a highly restrictive diet to lose weight will put it all back on. It's better to deny yourself nothing, but follow the 80:20 rule. Eat a healthy diet eighty percent of the time."

2] Get moving

Regular physical exercise not only tones your body, but boosts immunity, helping prevent a wide range of illnesses. Don't overwhelm yourself with unachievable targets. Instead, make small changes, such as incorporating a brisk twenty minute walk into your day at least three times a week. Small changes could also include: parking a bit farther from work, walking to the shops rather than driving or taking the stairs instead of the lift.

3] Get a good night's rest

A good night's sleep allows your body to recover from the day's stresses and helps you stay focused during the daytime. When sleeping, your body produces cells that fight infection, so too little sleep will leave you prone to illness. If you struggle with broken nights, check how old your mattress is: it should be replaced after seven years of regular use. Dim the lights an hour or two before bed to allow your body to start producing 'sleepy' hormones.

Examiner Only

Marks Remark

4] Take time to relax

Chronic stress is on the rise, and research has linked stress to illnesses like heart disease and diabetes. "We can all take steps to combat stress and prevent it from building up to problematic proportions," says stress management specialist Sarah Jordan. "A good place to start may simply be to say 'no' when you're already overstretched."

Going for a walk, switching your mobile off or curling up with a good book could all help alleviate chronic stress. You – and your health – are worth it!



© KatarzynaBialasiewicz/ iStock / Thinkstock Photograph 1



© sam74100/ iStock / Thinkstock





© A75/ iStock / Thinkstock
Photograph 3



Photograph 4

[10]

Headline		
Photograph Number		
Caption		

Examiner Only Marks Remark

Section B

Answer one question from this section.

Spend **25 minutes** writing your response.

You will be expected to use exam	ples to illustrate your arguments.
----------------------------------	------------------------------------

Discuss the main legal issues affecting journalists. 4

or

Discuss why news values differ between newspapers. 5

or

6 Discuss the circumstances in which a journalist would use a public interest defence.

The quality of written communication is assessed in this question.		

14

	Examin	
	Marks	Remark
1	1	

	Examiner Marks F	r Only Remark
	_	
	_	
	_	
	_	
	-	
	_	
	_	
	_	
	_	
	_	
	_	
roo	,	
[30]	
THIS IS THE END OF THE QUESTION PAPER		
	1	

Permission to reproduce all copyright material has been applied for. In some cases, efforts to contact copyright holders may have been unsuccessful and CCEA will be happy to rectify any omissions of acknowledgement in future if notified.



ADVANCED SUBSIDIARY (AS) General Certificate of Education 2015

Journalism in the Media and Communications Industry

AS Unit 1

Journalism in Print

[A1J11]

WEDNESDAY 27 MAY, MORNING

INSERT

INSERT FOR USE WITH QUESTION 1.

INSTRUCTIONS TO CANDIDATES

Do not write your answers on this insert.

For use with Question 1.

Article 1 is taken from a national tabloid newspaper with a broadly left wing agenda. It is owned by a large UK-based multi-media publisher.

Britain WILL take in refugees fleeing war-torn Syria

Syrian refugees fleeing the bloody civil war will be allowed into the UK – just a week after the Tories insisted that the country was "full to bursting".

Home Secretary Thomas Montague made the U-turn after a public outcry over the plight of millions of Syrians caught up in the violence.

"A limited number of Syrian refugees will be granted temporary asylum in the UK due to the deteriorating security situation. As a nation, I believe it is Britain's duty to give shelter to the most vulnerable," he told MPs in the Commons yesterday.

Up to 10,000 Syrians – mostly women, children and elderly people – are due to start arriving within weeks as part of a UN resettlement programme.

But the Home Secretary was met with jeers in the Commons from angry opposition MPs, who said he was not doing enough to help.

Charles Bryans, a Labour MP for Manchester South, said: "The Tory party's cynicism knows no bounds. This is pure tokenism and posturing from Mr Montague. Allowing asylum to 10,000 will make little difference in the face of such a huge humanitarian crisis – it's a drop in the ocean."

Aid agency, the Blue Crescent, also slammed the government move. Middle East director Peter Davies said: "It's too little, too late. People have been dying in Syria for months. Millions are enduring the harshest winter for years without adequate shelter or sanitation. Their only chance is asylum abroad. The government must do more if it is serious about helping the Syrians."

Last week an online petition calling for the UK to admit more Syrian refugees was backed by 80,000 in just two days.

Last week, the Home Secretary had ruled out letting any Syrians into the country. "The UK has an exemplary record in terms of the amount of money that we are providing in humanitarian aid, which is a larger sum of money than any other EU nation," he claimed.

"We are fully committed to supporting innocent Syrians, however, at this time we cannot take in more refugees. Britain is already full to bursting," he said.

Activists in Syria have reported an upsurge in fighting across the country in recent weeks.

The conflict, which started as a popular uprising against ruthless dictator President al-Hassan in March 2011, has claimed more than 100,000 lives. Another 9.5 million have been made homeless.

9808.02 **2**

For use with Question 1.

Article 2 is taken from a quality newspaper with a broadly right wing agenda. It is owned by a wealthy British businessman who is based in the tax haven of Monaco.

Conservative peer urges rethink on Syrian refugees

A Conservative peer has warned that the number of Syrian refugees should be limited to hundreds rather than thousands, arguing that Britain is already too densely populated.

Speaking after the Home
Secretary Thomas Montague
confirmed up to 10,000 Syrian
refugees will be granted asylum
in the UK, Sir Henry Cameron
said he was alarmed by the
government's decision: "There
are simply too many people
living in this country as it is.
We are much more densely
populated than other European
countries like France and
Germany. We cannot afford to
help everyone," he said.

"Accepting 2,000 of those Syrians most in need is reasonable, but I don't believe we can absorb more, given the economic conditions and the pressures we already face in this country."

Yesterday Mr Montague said that the UK would sign up to a UN resettlement programme it had previously rejected as unworkable. "A limited number of Syrian refugees will be granted temporary asylum in the UK due to the deteriorating security situation. As a nation, I believe it is Britain's duty to give shelter to the most vulnerable," he told the Commons.

Last week the Home Secretary rejected the proposal to allow more Syrians into the country. Mr Montague emphasised the UK's provision of humanitarian aid to the region.

"The UK has an exemplary record in terms of the amount of money that we are providing in humanitarian aid, which is a larger sum of money than any other EU nation," he said.

"We are fully committed to supporting innocent Syrians, however, at this time we cannot take in more refugees. Britain is already full to bursting," he warned.

The UN High Commissioner for Refugees has asked Western

governments to accept vulnerable refugees trapped in camps in neighbouring countries. Although the UK is the nineteenth country to sign up to the scheme, it is still more than 20,000 places short of its target. The aid agency, the Blue Crescent, has warned of poor conditions in the camps, saying thousands face starvation.

Syrian Human Rights, a group linked to the rebels, claim that around two hundred people are dying every day as attempts to broker a peace deal continue in Switzerland.

The war in Syria began in March 2011 with a popular uprising against Syrian leader President al-Hassan. It turned into a full-blown civil war after a crackdown by security forces led to an armed uprising.

So far 100,000 people have died in the violence. Millions more have been forced to flee from their homes.

9808.02

www.x	trapa	pers.	com
-------	-------	-------	-----

Permission to reproduce all copyright material has been applied for. In some cases, efforts to contact copyright holders may have been unsuccessful and CCEA will be happy to rectify any omissions of acknowledgement in future if notified.